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1 INSTRUCTIONS FOR SUBMITTING A TENDER: 
 

1.1 INTRODUCTION: 
 

1.1.1 Billericay Town Council (BTC) leases the Chantry Way Centre from Basildon Borough Council 
on a 99 year term from April 2016  

 
1.1.2 Following a feasibility study we are currently seeking professional companies who can deliver 

an exceptional value-for-money service to quote for the design and build of a new community 
building on the site. The services required are oulined in the tender specification document. 
 

1.1.3 The details of this document and all associated documents are to be treated as private and 
confidential for use only in connection with the Tender Request and contract process. 
 

1.2 Pricing 
 
1.2.1 The Council has money set aside in earmarked reserves which will part fund the new building 
 and the remaining monies will come from PWLB borrowing and grant funding.   It is 
 anticipated that the total cost will be around £1.3m.  

 
1.2.3 Candidates must provide a breakdown of the total costs for each design proposal 
 submitted. 
 

1.3 Preparation of the Tender Request (TR): 
 

1.3.1 Although this document is designed to be as complete and comprehensive as possible, 
potential tenderers must obtain for themselves all the information necessary for developing and 
costing their proposal and entering into a Contract.  
 

1.3.2 The Council will do everything possible to ensure candidates have access to all information 
they require in order to produce their response. 

 
1.3.3 Potential candidates must ensure that they clarify any points of doubt or ambiguity before 

submitting their tender.  If clarification is required in order to complete the tender, requests 
should be submitted to Deborah Tonkiss, Town Clerk townclerk@billericaytowncouncil.gov.uk.   
 

1.3.4 Any additional information requested will automatically be provided to all invited candidates. 
 

1.3.5 We strongly recommend a site visit by all interested parties prior to the submission of a 
tender. 

1.4 TR Procedures and Timetable: 

1.4.1 The following dates are applicable to this procurement: 

Target Date Task 

15 September Issue TR 

6 October Deadline for requests for additional information 

13 October Deadline for return of TR 

w/c 6th November Final selection of successful supplier and notify 
unsuccessful bidders 

1 December Target date for award of contract and first planning 
meeting 

 
1.4.2 No extensions to any dates contained in the procurement timetable shall be granted to 

candidates.  The Council reserves the right to amend these dates provided that by doing so the 
competitive process is not prejudiced. 
 

mailto:Jennifer.childs@folkestone-tc.gov.uk
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1.4.3 Candidates who are interested in this procurement are invited to submit a fully costed TR 
proposal together with all the supporting documents as specified in this TR. 

 
1.4.4 Billericay Town Council reserves the right to request additional information from a candidate to 

clarify their proposal, which is to be supplied at the expense of the candidate.   
 

1.4.5 This TR must be completed and returned in a sealed envelope, clearly marked with the 
following: TR Response – “Chantry Way Centre” to: 
 
Mrs Deborah Tonkiss 
Town Clerk 
Billericay Town Council, 
The Loft 
Crown Yard 
High Street 
Billericay CM12 9BX 

 
1.4.6 Your proposal must be received by 1700hrs 13 October – any tenders received after this date 

and time will not be considered. 
 

1.4.7 Please include, where appropriate, any supporting documents marking clearly on all 
documents the name of your organisation and the number of the question to which you refer.  
You should provide an index of all documents referred to in the completed quotation. 
 

1.4.8 Candidates must return one copy of the completed tender and any supporting documentation.  
If couriered or hand delivered it must be delivered to the Council offices at the above address.  
The opening times are Monday - Friday 0930hrs – 1230hrs. 
 

1.4.9 The quotation document should detail precisely how the supplier will satisfy the council’s 
requirements by reference to the council’s schedule of requirements at Section 3 and a 
completed cost schedule at section 4 of this tender request. 

 
1.4.10 The council does not bind itself to accept the lowest bid or any quotation.  The council reserves 

the right to withdraw any part of the quotation document prior to award of contract, and 
reserves the right to discontinue the quotation process at any time. 

1.5 Quotation Format and Cost Summary: 
  

1.5.1 The suppliers shall provide full details of all costs that are to be charged to the Council as 
detailed on the tender specification document. 
 

1.5.2 The completed schedule of requirements and the cost information must be attached as an 
addendum to the final submitted proposal. 
 

1.5.3 Once the proposal has been submitted no alterations to the text will be permitted.  Failure to 
complete any part of the quotation documents may also incur rejection of the proposal. 
 

1.6 Selection Criteria: 
 

1.6.1 This TR is a one stage process containing questions regarding suppliers’ ability and technical 
capability to provide and deliver the service within the costs being tendered.  The preferred 
supplier will be determined based on how their proposed solution can best demonstrate their 
ability to meet requirements along with the most economically advantageous tender.  
Preference will also be given to local suppliers. 
 

1.6.2 The TR evaluation will be split as per the following weighting: Methodology / Quality 60%, Cost 
40% 
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1.7 Arithmetic Accuracy: 
 

1.7.1 It is the responsibility of the supplier to check that all costs are identified, entered in the cost 
templates and are accurate.  Any area of cost that is not identified and not included with the 
submission will be treated as free of charge. 
 

1.7.2 If arithmetical mistakes are found after the contract has been awarded they will not be taken 

account of.  The figure agreed at the time of contract will prevail. 
 

1.8 Period of Acceptance: 
 

1.8.1 The potential supplier is required to hold their TR open for acceptance for a period of up to four 
months from the closing date. 
 

1.9 Final Submissions: 
 

1.9.1 The Council does not bind itself to accept the lowest or any quote and will not accept 
responsibility for any expense or loss which may be incurred by any potential candidate in the 
preparation of the TR. 
 

1.9.2 You must supply all details and certificates requested as part of this TR. 
 

1.9.3 Lack of information, may deem your tender unacceptable and will result in the failure of your 
submission. 
 

1.9.4 BTC will not accept incomplete nor non-specific/generic submissions. 
 

1.9.5 Unless specifically and clearly stated by candidates, they will be required to meet all the 
requirements specified within the TR price submitted. 
 

1.9.6 A formal contract will be issued to the successful TR. 
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2 ORGANISATIONAL INFORMATION AND REQUIREMENTS: 
 

2.1 ORGANISATION IDENTITY: 
 

Name of  
organisation 

 

Contact  

Address  

Tel No  Fax  

Email  

Company 
Registration no 

 Date of 
registration: 

 

Registered address 
(if different from 
above) 

 

 
2.2 ORGANISATION INFORMATION: 

 

Is your organisation: (Please tick those that are applicable) 

 Public limited company  

 Limited company  

 Partnership  

 Sole trader  

Date of organisation’s formation  

Date of incorporation in U.K. if different  

VAT registration number  

 
Is your organisation registered under the Data Protection Act 1998?  If the answer is yes, 
what is your DPA registration number?  

 

YES / NO 

Has your organisation or any director of your organisation or any other person who has 
powers of representation, decision or control of the organisation been convicted of any of 
the offences listed at Regulation 23 (1) (a) – (f) of the Public Contracts Regulations 
2015?  If the answer is yes, Billericay Town Council may require further information. 

 

 

YES / NO 

Do one or more of the grounds listed at Regulation 23 (4) (a) – (j) of the Public Contracts 
Regulations 2015 apply to your organisation?  If the answer is yes, Billericay Town 
Council may require further information. 

 

YES / NO 
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Are there any court actions and/or tribunal hearings outstanding against your 
organisation which relate to the provision of this contract (including but not limited to 
negligence claims, discrimination cases, infringement of intellectual property rights, 
infringement of data protection legislation)?  If the answer is yes, please give details. 

 

YES / NO 

Has your organisation been involved in any court action and/or tribunals over the last 3 
years which relate to the provision of this contract (including but not limited to negligence 
claims, discrimination cases, infringement of intellectual property rights, and infringement 
of data protection legislation)? If the answer is yes, please give details. 

 

 

YES / NO 

Is your organisation affiliated or associated with any other organisation which would be 
capable of providing this contract? If the answer is yes, please provide the name and 
registered office address. 

 

YES / NO 

List the full names of all Directors, Partners and Company Secretaries: 

Full Name Role 

  

  

Please give details of any Director, Partner or Associate who has been employed by Billericay Town 
Council: 

Full Name Role 

  

  

Please give details of any Director, Partner, Associate or Senior employee who has a relative who is 
employed by Billericay Town Council or who is a Council Member: 

Full Name Name of relation 

  

  

Please give details of any contractual relationship your organisation has had with Billericay Town 
Council: 

Full Name Senior Officer/Member Contract Details 

   

   

 
Have any proceedings been taken against the company's directors or employees 
resulting in convictions under the Prevention of Corruption Acts 1889-1916 or Section 
117 of the Local Government Act 1972? If the answer is yes, please give details: 

 

 

YES / NO 
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2.3 FINANCIAL INFORMATION: 

A financial credit check may be undertaken on your organisation as part of this tender process. 

If requested, would you be prepared to provide a set of the last years audited accounts 
for your own organisation and the holding and / or ultimate parent (if applicable).  

YES / NO 

Please give details of your bankers: 

Bank Name  

Branch address   

Account number  Sort code  

Number of years account has been open  

May bankers be approached for a reference?  YES / NO 

If goods, services and or works proposed in your tender return are sub-contracted, Billericay Town 
Council will require financial documents from each third party. 
 
 

2.4 INSURANCE: 

Please provide details of your organisation’s insurance protection in respect of the following.  A copy of 
your insurance papers must be provided as an appendix.  
 

Policy Number Insurer Indemnity value (£) in respect of any 
one incident 

Public Liability 

   

   

Personal Liability 

   

   

Professional Indemnity 

   

   

 
  
2.5 CAPACITY: 

Please supply details of staffing levels directly employed by your organisation: 
 

 
Have you got the current capacity to undertake the requirements of this contract 
alongside your existing contracts? 

 
YES / NO 
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Please provide contact details of the team who will be responsible for the delivery of this contract. 
 
Please provide brief details of the organisation's policies for the training and supervision of staff.  This 
should include, but not be limited to, training and supervision on health and safety matters and 
Investors in People if applicable 
 
Please indicate to which professional or trade bodies your organisation belongs to. Please include the 
registration number, date of registration and where possible copies of certificates and website details. 
 
 

2.6 PROVISION OF SERVICE: 
  

Please confirm whether you propose to provide any part or all of the proposed service 
through another organisation, whether this is through sub-contracting or a consortium? 
 

 
YES / NO 

If yes, please complete the following: 
 
What type of working arrangement do you have: 
 

 Sub-contract? 

 Consortium? 

 Other (please specify)? 
 

List all member organisations, identifying the role of each member, including the services to be 
provided by that organisation, its registered or principal office and indicating the organisation’s 
ultimate parent company where applicable. 
 
Will the relationships be specifically established for this contract?   YES / NO 

 
 
 

2.7 PREVIOUS CONTRACTS: 
 

Has the organisation ever had a contract terminated?   If yes, please state the name of 
employer, address, date of termination of contract and the circumstances leading to the 
termination: 
 

 
 
YES / NO 

Has the organisation ever withdrawn from a contract?  If yes, please state the name of 
employer, address, date of termination of contract and the circumstances leading to the 
termination: 

 

YES / NO 

Has the organisation ever been refused renewal of any contract due to failure to 
perform to the terms of the contract?  If yes please give name and address of the 
employer: 

 

 

YES / NO 

 

 

 

2.8 HEALTH & SAFETY POLICY: 

Please provide a copy of your organisation’s Health & Safety at Work Policy, to include risk 
assessment and method statement.  Please provide appropriate documentation regarding how this 
contract will be undertaken with due regard to Health and Safety.  This must be provided as an 
appendix and cross referenced to the TR proposal.    

This is a mandatory requirement. 
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Please detail any prosecutions or enforcement actions in relation to health and safety taken by any 
enforcing authority against the organisation or individuals within it in the last 5 years. 
 

2.9 SUSTAINABILITY: 
 

Please provide a copy of your organisation’s sustainability policy. 
 

2.10 ENVIRONMENTAL:  

Has your organisation been successfully prosecuted for infringement of 
environmental legislation in the past three years?  If the answer is yes, 
please provide further details. 
 

YES / NO 

2.11 EQUAL OPPORTUNITIES: 

This section concentrates on equal opportunities and asks questions about whether your organisation 
complies with the following legislation: 

 Human Rights Act 1998 

 Equality Act 2010 

We are committed to doing everything possible to promote equality in our organisation and will only do 
business with those organisations that adopt the same policy.   

 
2.12 PROFESSIONAL REFERENCES: 

Please provide details of organisations that you have provided a provision of goods, services and/or 
works for the purpose of a reference: 

For all contracts listed the details must include: 

 Customer name and address.  

 A brief overview of the project/programme description including the scope of your involvement 

 Value of contracts. 

 Contact name and telephone number. 

May customers be approached for a reference? YES / NO 

Please provide details of your organisation's involvement in any projects which have been awarded in 
the last 5 years where there was a failure to achieve programme and/or project objectives, or to 
achieve and maintain compliance with levels of service. 
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3 OUR REQUIREMENTS: 
 

3.1 SCHEDULE OF REQUIREMENTS: 
 
The services supplied must meet or exceed the full requirement as detailed in the Tender Specification 
document.  Therefore, the tender must clearly identify any areas outside the scope of this procurement 
that is the responsibility of the Council. 
 
It is important at the time of completing this TR that you specify a lead time for delivery of the goods 
and services, with a comprehensive delivery/ implementation/ installation plan to meet the Council’s 
objectives. 
 
On receipt of the Council’s purchase order, the successful tenderer shall provide to the Council a 
programme of work covering the planning and implementation phases giving a brief outline of time 
scales involved.  The successful tenderer will also be required to provide regular progress reports. 
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4 COSTS:  
 
Suppliers are required to submit their costs using the template in the Tender Specification.  Suppliers 
may add extra sections as appropriate. 

 
All costs should be a fixed price exclusive of VAT. 

 
Please state clearly what is to be provided within each area of cost.  The Council shall not make any 
payments of other costs that are not listed here and/or are ancillary to the service provision.  



13 
 

 


